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Message
From: Rodric Williams GRO i
on behalfof  Rodric Williams: GRO E
Sent: 06/02/2018 16:56:54
To: Paul Loraine | GRO !
cC: Matthews, Gavin; GRO i Andrew Parsons

GRO
Subject: FW: Post Office Limited - Update

Attachments: CCRC-#2078925-v1-CCRC_review_-_Seema_Misra_-_selected_entries_from_transaction_logs_.XLS

Paul - please see the latest email for the CCRC below.

As we have discussed, can you please prepare a draft response for me, engaging your other colleagues as may be
appropriate given your imminent departure.

Thanks, Rod

From: TrentM| GRO

Sent: 05 February 2018 12:53

To: Rodric Williams GRO
Subject: RE: Post Office Limited - Update

Dear Rodric,

I hope you are well. | write further to our very useful telephone conversation on 12/01/2018. | think you were going to send
me a follow-up email after that (a written reply to my email of 05/12/2017 below), but | haven't received anything yet. I'd be
grateful if you could send, when you get a chance.

In the meantime, | have some additional queries which I'd be grateful for your help on. Having been through the
transaction logs for the Misra case, there are a number of transactions which we would like POL to comment upon. | have
attached to this email some spreadsheets which illustrate the transactions in question (if you don’t have the relevant
original transaction logs easily accessible, let me know and | can send those t00).

Firstly, and on a more general note, the Misra transaction logs contain a number of instances where there are two
transactions for exactly the same amount at the same time and date. The possibility has been discussed that one of the
two entries might be a ‘duplicate’ which did not in fact occur. However, the CCRC observes that almost all of the identified
examples relate to transactions where cash was being placed into pouches and then remitted back to POL. On the
assumption that only 1 pouch was in fact remitted back to POL, the CCRC has considered whether this scenario could
cause a shortfall in the branch in question on an audit of the cash held. So, for example:

If a duplicate remittance of a cash pouch was recorded in Horizon as two £5,000 transactions (this would be
recorded in the transaction log as two negative entries of £5,000), POL would have expected to receive two
pouches of £5,000. If POL in fact only received one pouch, then the SPMR would be expected to have a pouch of
£5,000 in branch.

The question arises as to whether this scenario produces a £5,000 shortfall in the branch. The CCRC’s understanding is
that it does not. If an audit of the branch took place at that time, the expectation would be that both sums of money have
left the branch, and so there would note be a shortfall of cash in branch. The CCRC’s understanding is that if POL were
expecting two pouches in the above scenario and only received one, POL would issue a Transaction Correction for
£5,000. If the SPMR accepted such a Transaction Correction, there would then be a shortfall in the branch accounts.

Q1. Can you let us know whether or not you consider our above analysis to be correct?
Q2. Sheet 1 of the attachment to this email (at lines 50-55) contains two identical entries for £10,000 cash remittances.
They are both made up of the same component parts (sums of £8000 and £2000), are both entered at exactly the same

time 12:26 and 17 seconds on 27/09/2007, and both have the same transaction ID number. We have not been able to
identify a Transaction Correction in the log which corresponds to these two entries. Please can POL comment on:
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a) Whether the component entries for £8000 and £2000 relate to denominations of banknote? Is the CCRC

correct in its understanding that there were 400 x £20 notes and 200 x £10 notes in each of these entries?

b) How it is that both of the entries for £10,000 occur at the same time and have the same transaction ID? Is it

possible for separate transactions to have the same transaction ID?

c) Does POL retain any records of either or both of these £10,000 cash pouches being scanned in as received by
POL?

d) In all of the circumstances, might this be an example of a computer-generated ‘duplicate’? Or does POL

consider that these were indeed separate transactions and separate sums of money?

Q3. Sheet 2 of the attachment to this email (at lines 42-46) contains two identical entries for remittances into the branch of
foreign exchange, each valued at £7,806.15. Both entries are timed at 10:03 and 6 seconds on 12 June 2007. Please can
POL comment on:

a) The foreign exchange relates to a remittance of Euros. The CCRC understands that £7,806.15 would have
amounted to approximately 11,570 Euros in June 2007 (on an exchange rate of 0.67). Does POL consider
there is anything out of the ordinary about a Forex remittance in an uneven amount of this kind?

b) Is there any way of POL being confident that there were in fact two deliveries of foreign exchange in this
amount at the same date and time or, in all of the circumstances, might this be an example of a computer-
generated ‘duplicate’?

Q4. Sheets 1 and 3 of the attachment to this email contain examples of transaction corrections for relatively large sums of
money.
a) On sheet 1 (at line 60) there is a TC for £19,260, and on sheet 3 (at line 98) there is a TC for £27,000. For each of
these TC’s can POL please confirm whether the branch was being told, “the cash that you have sent to POL is
short by this amount”, or alternatively “the cash that you have sent to POL is x amount too much”?

b) On sheet 3 (at lines 88-91) there are also two TCs for £15,000 which appear to cancel each other out. Can POL
explain what was happening in those TCs?

Many thanks for your help with this. Please let me know if it would help to discuss any part of this email.
Kind regards,
Miles

Miles Trent

Case Review Manager

Criminal Cases Review Commission
Tel GRO

From: TrentM

Sent: 20 December 2017 15:15

To: 'Rodric Williams'

Subject: FW: Post Office Limited - Update

Dear Rodric,
I hope you are well. This is just a quick message, further to my below email.

| am on leave after today (back in on 2™ Jan), but could we pick up on matters early in the New Year? It would be good if
we could arrange the Fujitsu visit at some point in January or early February.

| hope you have a good Christmas and New Year.
Kind regards,
Miles

Miles Trent
Case Review Manager
Criminal Cases Review Commission
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Tel: : GRO

From: TrentM

Sent: 05 December 2017 13:25

To: 'Rodric Williams'

Subject: RE: Post Office Limited - Update

Dear Rodric,

Sorry for the delay getting back to you on the below. | had planned to reply much sooner, but it has been a hectic period
at this end. | have now had a chance to discuss the various points with my CCRC colleagues, and we can respond as
follows:

1. Grant Thornton questions

We note that the reports are no longer available. As matters stand we do not wish to attempt to recreate the reports using
codes from the transaction data, thank you.

In discussion with Grant Thornton, however, two other questions have emerged which | don't think you and | have
discussed before -

i. [Arising from paragraph 1.6 of GT’s questions document — copy re-attached for your reference] If we
were to provide details of a specific transaction correction would POL be able to provide
contemporaneous supporting evidence that was provided to the SPMR at the time the transaction
correction was issued? (we recognise that in Ms Misra’s case the transaction corrections would be
approximately 12 years ago — could you confirm how long such supporting evidence is retained?)

ii. POL’s written reply to GT's questions referred a number of times to event codes, but there are no
event codes on the copy of the Misra branch Event Log that we have (see attached extract). Is any
other data available in connection with the Misra Event Log? — i.e. might a version exist which does
display the event codes?

2. KEL

Thanks for looking into this. We understand what you say, and that it appears that it will be difficult to search for / identify
issues in the KEL which might have related to Ms Misra’s branch. However, in the interests of completeness, we would
like to take you up on your offer of having supervised access to the KEL at Fujitsu’'s premises (with an appropriate non-
disclosure agreement in place). This is because a number of the written submissions which we have received in these
cases have made reference to the KEL, and we believe that a visit to view the KEL will help us to better understand the
nature of the database and, in broad terms, how it works. A better informed understanding of the KEL will inevitably help
the CCRC when pulling together our reasoning / making decisions in these cases. Would it possible to arrange a visit for
some time in January?

3. Misra — docs AMO8 and AM09

Thank you for the better quality versions of these, which | have forwarded to Grant Thornton. Obviously, if typed versions
become available that would be even better, many thanks.

4. Other live points
Transaction logs — Noted, many thanks for this information.

Later applications — Thanks for the confirmation. On a connected issue, we have recently begun work on two new
applications: Hutchings (our ref 00660/2017) and O’'Connell (our ref 00761/2017). | understand that section 17 notices
have recently been sent out to you on those cases. As confirmed before, we don’t need POL to carry out an extensive
trawl for electronic files/drives on these newer applications, although we will need the investigations and prosecution files
to be preserved. In addition, the CRM on those two cases has asked whether the core prosecution files and any mediation
materials could be added to the data room for those two cases. Would that cause particular difficulties? I'm happy to
discuss this further.

5. Report by Jonathan Swift QC
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Many thanks for this, and for your explanation of the relevant chronology. At present we would like to make follow-up
requests for materials arising out of paragraphs 108 and 111 of Mr Swift QC’s report, namely:

i. Any advice(s) received from counsel (whether from Brian Altman QC or another) about “whether the
bringing of a charge without sufficient evidence to provide a realistic prospect of conviction could be
said, under the criminal law, to cast doubt upon the safety of the conviction of a defendant who has
pleaded quilty”

ii. Paragraph 111 states “...We have seen the detailed legal advice provided by Brian Altman QC, dated 31
October 2013, on this topic and asked POL for a formal letter explaining how it was responding to the
recommendations made by Mr Altman QC. POL provided us that letter on 18 December 2015, along with a
detailed Prosecution Policy for England and Wales which is fo be submitted to the Board for approval on 22
January 2016.” We have previously been provided with Mr Altman QC's advice dated 15 October 2013
(attached). Is that the same advice, or is there a second document? If so we would be grateful to obtain a
copy. We would also like to obtain copies of the other documents referred to at paragraph 111.

I will arrange for S17 notices to go out to you this week in connection with the Swift QC advice and the other documents
arising. We also note that S25 CAA 1995 is invoked in relation to all of these documents.

Thanks for your continued help on these cases. Please let me know if it would help to discuss any part of this email.
Kind regards,
Miles

Miles Trent
Case Review Manager
Criminal Cases Review Commission

Teld GRO a

From: Rodric Williamsi GRO i
Sent: 15 November 2017 17:02

To: TrentM

Subject: RE: Post Office Limited - Update

Dear Miles
{ provide an update on the various points below.

1. Grant Thornten questions

For 1.3.2 and 1.8, the reports are no longer available and do not appear in the prosecution files against Misra. It may be
possible to recreate these reports using the codes from the transaction data. If you want us to Iry to do this, please let
me know and we will have a more detailed look into this with Fujitsu to see what it involves and whether it can be done,

For 1.9 regarding the bank totals receipts, these were not in the prosecution files, and the branch was only required to
retain them for 2 years. Bank of freland would have had these originally, but given the length of time that has passed we
consider it unlikely that they would stilt have them, These figures are not available on Horizon data as this is not part of
the accounting process for balancing the ATM on Horizon. Essentially, the primary figures for the ATM balance on
Horizon are: starting cash {which is via a Rem in or transfer in}, daily dispensed figures, retracts/ transaction failures, and
cash on hand.

2. KEL
We have asked Fujitsu whether it is possible to address your follow up request, but there are a number of issues which

make this complex and potentially not possible. The KEL is not a document but a live database, and it cannot be
downloaded or printed, and so could only be inspected at Fujitsu's premises rather than provided separately. The KEL s
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also not recorded on a branch-by-branch basis and therefore any information about Misra {if any exists} is not readily
accessible/ identifiable, if it is accessible/identifiable at all.

As mentionad above, the KEL is a live and evolving database, so even if there are any potentially relevant entries, they
may no longer be held. The date range you have mentioned is also very wide and old {more than 17 years ago) and we
are informed this data has been archived and has therefore {ost its context and may not be complete. Fujitsu has also
tobd us that since the data is not recorded by branch, there is no sasy way of analysing the data either by branch or by
type, and this is made more challenging where data has been archived, as it would have been with the date range you
have mentioned.

Fujitsu is nonetheless happy to let yvou have supervised access to the KEL at its premises provided an appropriate Non-
Disclosure Agreement is in place. Please let me know if you would like to do this and we will make arrangements with
Fujitsu.

3. Misra

On the back of your request we went back to the substantial original files and specifically searched for AMOS and

AMUOS, These files were located in the data room as having already been uploaded, and we hold the originals. We attach
further scans which are slightly better than those originally supplied, although the originals are clearer still. To enable
you to have legible coples, we are copy typing them and are happy to make the originals available for inspection at
Womble Bond Dickinson's offices in Bristol.

4, Other live points

Transaction fogs - The ISNs are not shown in the Session 1Ds or Transaction 1Ds. The session 1D s not based on 15N, so
any gaps in session 1D does not imply any gap in 15Ns. Typically where Fujitsu submit data in support of a prosecution, it
is in the form of an Excel spreadsheet which often has a sheet {abelled "Summary” and then one or more sheets
containing transaction data. Fujitsu informs us that the completeness of the sequence of JSNs for each ARG is confirmed
on the Summary sheet in the spreadsheet,

The data that Fujitsu provide in the ARQ spreadsheets to support a prosecution shows what has besn done at the
terminals in a branch for a given period and any other data from the audit log would be supplementary.

The JSNs are not intended for use by the branch and the data is therefore not available to the branch.

Broughton/McDonald — thank vou for confirming.

8 lgter applications — we have asked POL Security/RMG and Carbwright King to retain any further files that may be
identified.

5. Additional point re 04/03/2016 letter from Post Office Limited Chairman, Tim Parker

The review undertaken by Jonathan Swift QC and Christopher Knight was undertaken directly for Post Office’s {then in-
coming} Chairman, who on taking office wanted an independent assessment of what Post Office had done to date in
response to the postmaster/Horizon challenges so that he could determine whether any further action should be taken.

{ attach a copy of the report, which as you will see made & recommendations.

Work was commissioned on all 8 of the Review's recommendation. While some of that work was relatively
straightforward {for example Bond Dickinson LLP produced a report on recommendation 7}, a significant portion of it
has been complex and time consuming. The Review work also commenced before the Group Litigation began, such that
work on it effectively stopped for the purposes of the Review, but is being undertaken in connection with the Group
Litigation {for example Deloitte’s work on the audit store and suspense accounts, which is ongoing}.
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if there are any materials arising out of the Swift Report that you would like 1o see, please let me know. T would also be
grateful if you could please send me 3 5.17 request in respect of those materials, and also for the attached

Review. Please treat this email as formal notice under 5.25 of the Criminal Appeal Act 1995 that the Review, and any
documents arising out of it which you may now request, should not be disclosed without our prior consent.

{hope this has besn helpful. As ever, | am happy to discuss this further as you may require.
Kind regards, Rodric

Rodric Williams

Head of Legal -~ Dispute Resolution & Brand
20 Finsbury Strast

London EC2Y 9AQ

2017 Winner of the Global Postal Award for Customer g, ;
Experience *

From: TrentM | GRO !
Sent: 29 September 2017 15:48
To: Rodric Williamsi GRO i

Subject: RE: Post Office Limited - Update

Dear Rodric,
Further to our telephone conversation on Tuesday, | write with a further update on some of the points below.

1. Grant Thornton questions
| have supplied Grant Thornton with POL’s written reply. | haven’t heard any detailed feedback as yet, but they
have expressed an interest in the point that you and | discussed briefly on Tuesday, namely, are the
reports/documents which are referred to in the written reply (e.g. paragraphs 1.3.2, 1.8 and 1.9) still available for
Ms Misra’s indictment period and post office branch (June 2005-January 2008 at West Byfleet). Or, if the original
reports are not, could they be reconstructed from source data now? | raise this point for information at the
moment, as | intend to discuss it further with Grant Thornton in the coming weeks.

2. KEL
Thanks for the information on this. I'm afraid we have a follow up query — is it possible to search for KELs dating
from the time of Ms Misra's indictment period? If so, we would be grateful if we could be provided with / given
access to all KELs raised or updated in the period June 2005-danuary 2008. In making this request we remain
mindful of paragraph 50(4) of the Post Office’s Defence and Counterclaim to the Group Action. However, we
believe that this KEL data - if still in existence — is information which we will need to review before we can resolve
the applications to the CCRC.

3. Misra
Many thanks for the information on opening hours, and for AM10. We will wait to hear further regarding AM08 and
AMO9, thanks.

4. Other live points

e We will wait to hear further regarding transaction logs, thanks.

e Regarding the Broughton/McDonald document, we have now discussed at this end. In view of the
significant technical difficulties you are facing, we have decided to attempt to address the relevant issues
in that case using other documents at our disposal. As matters stand, therefore, efforts to retrieve this
document can be suspended. We will let you know if we need to revisit the issue later in our review.

e Regarding electronic documents in the more recent 8 applications to the CCRC, we have now discussed
at this end. All that we require for the time being is confirmation that the investigation and prosecution
files for those cases (be they in hard copy or electronic) are preserved and will not be destroyed. Does
that save POL some of the electronic trawl / extraction exercise you refer to? If | have misunderstood this
point in any way, I’'m happy to discuss on the phone.
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5. Additional point re 04/03/2016 letter from Post Office Limited Chairman, Tim Parker.
In the course of our enquiries we have used S17 CAA 1995 to secure material from UKGI (formally Dept for BIS).
Among the materials was the attached letter from Tim Parker to Baroness Neville-Rolfe, dated 4 March 2016. Mr
Parker refers to an internal review undertaken with the assistance of Jonathan Swift QC and Christopher Knight
or counsel. | don't recall having read about this review before (unless | am missing something?), and would be
grateful for further information on this, including any report(s) ultimately produced. Could we discuss when you
have a moment? Point of interest to our review might include:
e Reference to taking advice from counsel on the over-charging argument (Theft / False accounting) —

bottom of page 2.

Reference to potential for analysis of transaction logs - second paragraph on page 3.

The instruction of independent experts to examine “unmatched balances in Post Office’s general

suspense account” etc — bottom of page 3.

Many thanks for your help.

Kind regards,

Mile

S

Miles Trent
Case Review Manager
Criminal Cases Review Commission

From: Rodric Williams GRO ;

Sent: 24 September 2017 23:27

To:

TrentM

Subject: Post Office Limited - Update

Dear Miles,

Furt

her to our recent communications, including our telephone conversation on 22 September 2017, | provide in this email

a general update on the status of various live matters concerning your investigation. | hope it is useful and please do let
me know if there is anything you want to follow up.

1. Grant Thornton questions

Please find attached our response to Grant Thornton's questions, which we hope is of some assistance. Please treat our
response as confidential, and ensure that it is not disclosed without our prior consent to anyone other than the Grant
Thornton team assisting the CCRC’s investigations. To the extent Grant Thornton have follow-up questions, we are of
course happy to help with those.

We

2. KEL

have now received answers from Fujitsu to your questions on the KEL. Your questions are in black and Fujistu's

responses are in red below.

e Paragraph 50(4) of the defence refers to the KEL as a “document” in the singular, am | right in thinking it
exists as a single document rather than multiple different logs? The KEL is a single database which
changes with new KELs being added, changed, and removed on g regular basis.

e Interms of scale, in your email of 13/11/2016 you referred to “thousands of entries” and “voluminous
entries” in the KEL, is it possible to say how many pages the document runs to? Fujitsu has confirmed
that the KEL currently runs to 3873 KELs.

¢ In your email of 13/11/2016 you stated: “We have asked Fujitsu for some random examples of these
entries, and will provide these to you in due course”. | don’t think we have received any examples to date.
I would be grateful if we could see some sample pages, as this would give us a clearer idea of the kind of
information the KEL contains, and whether further analysis of the document is likely to be of any
relevance to our review. Examples copied at the botiom of this email.
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3. MISRA

My records suggest there were two outstanding points on Misra: (1) can POL confirm the opening hours for the indictment
period (2005-2008)?; and (2) are there any further Branch Trading Statements for Misra other than December 2007 -
January 20087

On point 1, please see the attached "Office Transfer" document dated 15 June 2005 which shows that the opening hours
were stated as being 9am-5.30pm Monday to Friday and 9am-1pm on Saturday.

On point 2, we have located on the data room the attached list of exhibits and statements. This list refers to branch trading
statements covering the following periods: (1) November 2006-December 2006 (Exhibit AMO8); (2) May 2007-June 2007
(Exhibit AM09); and (3) November 2007-December 2007 (AM10). | see from past correspondence that you already have
access to the BTS covering December 2007 to January 2008.

We have located AM08, AM09 and AM10 on the data room (please see attached) but unfortunately only one of the three

documents — AM10 — is legible. We are making enquiries to track down better quality versions of AM08 and AMQ9 and will
let you know as soon as we have any news on this.

4. OTHER LIVE POINTS

e Your queries on transaction logs are currently with Fujitsu and we will update you as soon as we have a
response.

e Broughton /McDonald document — technical issues are still preventing us from accessing the relevant EFC. We
appreciate this issue has been live for some time. Please be assured we are still trying to gain access to the
document, but the difficulties we are experiencing are an unfortunate consequence of trying to retrieve historic
documentation.

e A search has been carried out for hard copy documents relating to Rubbina Shaheen and | can now confirm that
Post Office does not hold any hard copy files for this case. Electronic materials for this case are already available
on the data room.

e You will see from the attached tracker that we have completed our document collation process (subject to your
thoughts on the point below) but we will, of course keep the position under review. To the extent we become
aware of further documents on any of the cases, we will make those documents available to you on the data
room.

e With respect to electronic documents generally, you may recall that the original extraction of electronic documents
was done in and around June/July 2015. Since that extraction was carried out, 8 further applications have been
made to the CCRC: Hedges, Holmes, Trousdale, Shaheen, Joshi, Owen, Parekh and Warren. The original
extraction included a large volume of electronic documents relating to these 8 further cases, which information
has already been made available to you on the data room. Given this, and our understanding that your current
focus is on the earlier cases, we had not proposed to undertake a further exercise of seeking to identify (and if
relevant extracting) any additional electronic files/drives for these newer cases. Please however let us know if you
would like us to take a different approach.

| trust this has been helpful. We remain available to discuss any aspect of this with you further as you may require.

Kind regards, Rodric

POL-0108468
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Rodric Willlams

Head of Legal - Dispute Resolution & Brand

20 Finsbury Street

London BC2Y SAGQ

Tl GRO !

2017 Winner of the Global Postal Award for Customer gy i
Experience ! G RO
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This email and any attachments are confidential and intended for the addressee only. If you are not the named
recipient, you must not use, disclose, reproduce, copy or distribute the contents of this communication. If you
have received this in error, please contact the sender by reply email and then delete this email from your system.
Any views or opinions expressed within this email are solely those of the sender, unless otherwise specifically

stated.

POST OFFICE LIMITED is registered in England and Wales no 2154540. Registered Office: Finsbury Dials,
20 Finsbury Street, London EC2Y 9AQ.

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
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The Criminal Cases Review Commission
5 St Philip's Place
Birmingham

B3 2PW
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If you are not the intended recipient of this communication, any disclosure,
copying, distribution, or any action taken in reliance on it is prohibited and

may be unlawful. If you have received this communication in error, please
return it immediately to the sender by replying to it and then delete the
message from your computer.

We may monitor the content of e-mails sent and received via our network for the
purposes of ensuring compliance with policies and procedures.

Viruses: Although we have taken steps to ensure that this e-mail and attachments
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